
High Peak Borough Council

ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 21 November 2019

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Octagon Lounge, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

13 November 2019

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5. Rail Reinstatement Campaign - The Peaks and Dales Rail Link - Presentation by 
Stephen Chaytow 

6. Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework (Pages 7 - 22)

7. Progress Report on One Public Estate programmes (Pages 23 - 36)

8. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

9. Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 37 - 38)

10. Exclusion of the press and public 
(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

11. Exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 39 - 40)
(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Public Document Pack



Membership of Economy and Growth Select Committee
Councillor E Siddall (Chair) Councillor L Grooby (Vice-Chair)
Councillor T Ashton Councillor R Atkins
Councillor M Hall Councillor I Huddlestone
Councillor T Kemp Councillor D Kerr
Councillor E Lawson Councillor R Quinn
Councillor P N Roberts Councillor K Savage



ECONOMY AND GROWTH SELECT COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 26 September 2019 at 6.30 pm in The Board Room, 
Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

Present: Councillor E Siddall (Chair)

Councillors T Ashton, R Atkins, L Grooby, M Hall, I Huddlestone, 
T Kemp, D Kerr, R Quinn and P N Roberts

In Attendance: Councillors J Todd and A McKeown

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors E Lawson and 
K Savage

20/10 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE 
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations made.

20/11 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)

RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2019 be approved as a 
correct record.

20/12 TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR PUBLIC TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
(Agenda Item 5)

The Committee considered the terms of reference for the Public Transport 
Task & Finish Group these were agreed as:

 To examine the level of provision of bus and rail transport in the High 
Peak (including ticketing options and the withdrawal of the b_line 
discount travel card).

 To scrutinise the plans for investing in bus and rail transport in the High 
Peak.

 To scrutinise the effectiveness of public transport for travel-to-work and 
travel-to-learn for High Peak residents.

 To scrutinise the effectiveness of public transport in supporting the visitor 
economy.

 To make recommendations to improve the effectiveness of public 
transport in the area.

High Peak Borough Council

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 26 September 2019

RESOLVED:

1. That the political groups be invited to nominate members to the Public 
Transport Task and Finish Group (three Labour, two Conservative and 
one Liberal Democrat).

2. That the Terms of Reference for the Task and Finish Group be agreed 
as set out above.

20/13 WHALEY BRIDGE BUSINESS SUPPORT - PRESENTATION
(Agenda Item 6)

The Committee received a presentation with regards to the business 
recovery response to the Toddbrook Reservoir incident.  This included the 
creation of an action plan and timeline for the operation and recovery 
phases.  Members discussed the support from businesses outside of the 
locality and the quality of transport information available during the incident.  
A lessons learnt session and government inquiry into the incident were due 
to take place shortly.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation be received.

20/14 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 7)

RESOLVED:

The work programme would be reviewed and circulated to members.

20/15 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 9)

RESOLVED: 

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

20/16 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 10)

RESOLVED: 

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2019 be approved 
as a correct record.

Page 4



Economy and Growth Select Committee
Thursday, 26 September 2019

20/17 UPDATE ON FAIRFIELD ROAD (ORAL UPDATE)
(Agenda Item 11)

Members received an update on the Fairfield Road project. 

The meeting concluded at 7.43 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Economy and Growth Select Committee

21 November 2019

TITLE: Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Anthony McKeown - Council 
Leader HPBC

CONTACT OFFICER: Dai Larner - Executive Director (Place)

WARDS INVOLVED: (All Wards);

Appendices Attached – None

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To notify Councillors of the proposal to prepare the Derbyshire Strategic 
Planning Framework and to identify possible implications for the Borough 
Council.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee notes the proposals and that it agrees to scrutinise details 
of the Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework as they emerge. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 A Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework is proposed to provide a non 
statutory plan for the county to cover the period 2020 to 2050. The plan would 
establish objectives and priorities across the county and Peak District National 
Park which would help to shape future Local Plans and be a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications. 

3.2 The Framework would be prepared by Derbyshire County Council in 
conjunction with local planning authorities. Sign off would be sought from the 
D2 Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity and each local authority. The 
plan will be underpinned by new evidence and subject to public consultation 
anticipated in 2021 and 2022. As the document is non-statutory, it would not 
be subject to scrutiny by a planning inspector. 

3.3 It is proposed that the Economy and Growth Select Committee receives future 
reports to scrutinise the project as it develops. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1  The Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework has the potential to help 
deliver all four themes of the Corporate Plan:

• Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High 
Peak.

• A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward-thinking council.
• Protect and create jobs by supporting economic growth, development and 

regeneration.
• Protect and improve the environment including responding to the climate 

emergency.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 This report provides an introduction to the concept of the Derbyshire Strategic 
Planning Framework and possible issues that may arise from it. Options and 
detailed matters arising from the project as it evolves are proposed to be 
subject to future reports.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None direct

6.2 Workforce

Officer time will be required to consider the Framework and 
potentially assist in its preparation.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

Please see form.

6.4 Financial Considerations

Potential requirement for financial contributions towards the 
commissioning of joint studies – which would potentially need to be 
factored into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan when 
known, if existing Regeneration budgets cannot cover

6.5 Legal

This report sets out a proposal to take part in the preparation of the 

Page 8



Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework. The project will support   
the Council in meeting its “duty to co-operate” under rthe 2011 
Localism Act. The duty to consult is recognised within the report 
and the risks associated are set at paragraph 7.15. Non statutory 
plans are given limited weight in respect of the determination of 
planning applicatons and the joint strategic plan should not conflict 
with statutory local planning policy.   

6.6 Sustainability

The Derbyshire Strategic Plannng Framework will be subject to 
Sustainability Appraisal

6.7 Consultation

The Framework will be subject to public consultation. 

6.8 Risk Assessment

Risks and mitigation measures are set out in the report and will be 
incorporated into the risk register.

Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

None Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)
dai.larner@highpeak.gov.uk

7. Detail

Background and status

7.1 Derbyshire County Council propose to develop a non-statutory Strategic 
Planning Framework for Derbyshire and the whole of the Peak District 
National Park in conjunction with local planning authorities. Given the 
proposed status of the framework, it would not form part of the statutory 
development plan for High Peak outside of the Peak District National Park 
which currently comprises of the High Peak Local Plan, Chapel-en-le-Frith 
Neighbourhood Plan (in Chapel Parish only) and the Minerals and Waste 
Local Plans issued by Derbyshire County Council. 

7.2 Decisions on planning applications are required to be made in accordance 
with the policies in the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. The Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework (DSPF) 

6.4

Page 9



would be a material consideration in the preparation of future Local Plans and 
the determination of planning applications by local planning authorities. Given 
that there is now a requirement for Local Plans to be reviewed every five years 
and then updated if necessary; it is possible that the DSPF will be developed 
in parallel with an update to the High Peak Local Plan which was adopted in 
April 2016. 

7.3 The proposed approach in Derbyshire is similar to other non-statutory 
frameworks which have begun to evolve across England such as the Norfolk 
Strategic Planning Framework and the Leicester & Leicestershire Strategic 
Growth Plan. It is important to note that this approach is less formal than 
statutory spatial development strategies now supported by the National 
Planning Policy Framework. Such documents can be produced by an elected 
Mayor or combined authority where plan-making powers have been conferred. 
The Greater Manchester Spatial Framework is an example of such an 
approach which goes much further tha the proposed scope of the DSPF by 
specifying planning policies, allocating strategic sites and amending the Green 
Belt. 

7.4 There has not been a joint planning framework for the whole of Derbyshire 
since the abolition of the East Midland Regional Plan in 2010. Prior to the 
Regional Plan, the Derby and Derbyshire Structure Plan set strategic planning 
for the county until it was withdrawn in 2004 as part of wider reforms to the 
planning system. In the meantime, individual local planning authorities and 
other public bodies have been subject to the “duty to co-operate” as set out in 
the Localism Act 2011. This requires relevant public bodies to co-operate in 
relation to planning for sustainable development when preparing Development 
Plan Documents, other Local Development Documents and other plans 
relating to strategic matters. Specifically, the duty:

• Relates to sustainable development or use of land that would have a 
significant impact on at least two local planning areas or on a 
planning matter that falls within the remit of a County Council;

• Requires that Councils set out planning policies to address such 
issues;

• Requires that Councils and public bodies to ‘engage constructively, 
actively and on an ongoing basis’ to develop strategic policies; and

• Requires Councils to consider joint approaches to plan making.

7.5 In addition to the above, it is considered that the DSPF could be used to 
inform future funding bids for regeneration initiatives and to form the basis of 
collective responses to sub-regional matters. 

Content

7.6 The stated intention of the DSPF would be to establish key priorities and 
objectives by establishing an overarching spatial vision for Derbyshire for the 
period 2020 to 2050. This approach could help local planning authorities to 
demonstrate compliance with the duty to co-operate. 

Page 10



7.7 Policies and the designation of land for protection or development would not 
be included and such matters would continue to be considered in Local Plans 
and Neighbourhood Plans. The precise scope of the DSPF is to be 
determined, however, strategic matters which are likely to be considered 
include; housing, employment, gypsies and travellers, public health, minerals 
and waste and environmental issues. 

7.8 The DSPF will be informed by evidence and it is proposed that various county-
wide studies are commissioned by Derbyshire County Council. Possible new 
evidence includes; demographic and economic projections, sustainability 
appraisal and other evidence identified by local authorities. An update to the 
Derbyshire Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment has already 
been commissioned. A series of topic papers will also be prepared to 
summarise key issues arising from the evidence.

 

Preparation and Governance 

7.9 The preparation of the DSPF was considered by the Derbyshire Chief 
Executives Group in May 2019 and the D2 Joint Committee for Economic 
Prosperity in June 2019. Subsequently, it is proposed that the D2 Joint 
Committee provides strategic oversight and leadership of the work and, in 
particular, sign off responsibilities for key stages in preparation of the 
Framework. Individual local authorities will also need to consider sign off of 
the Framework. 

7.10 Officer task and finish groups will be established as appropriate to ensure 
delivery of the more day-to-day activity in development of the Framework. 
This would comprise of officers from Derbyshire County Council and local 
planning authorities. This will follow on from initial officer level discussion 
regarding the initiative that have taken place to date. 

7.11 Funding support for the initiative will be sought from the Government’s 
Planning Delivery Fund. However, contributions in terms of officer time and 
financial contributions towards joint commissions are also likely to be 
required. 

7.12 As a non-statutory document, the DSPF would not be subject to examination 
by an independent inspector as is the case for Local Plans and 
Neighbourhood Plans. However, it is proposed that public consultation will be 
undertaken on proposals. 

Issues

7.13 Derbyshire County Council has identified a number of potential benefits of 
the DSPF. They include:

• Providing an effective mechanism for setting out the key strategic 
cross-boundary planning objectives and priorities.

• Bringing together the separate growth strategies that are currently 
embedded in individual local plans to deliver this growth in a more 

Page 11



coordinated and effective way.

• Integrating strategic spatial, infrastructure and economic priorities 
and plan for long term strategic infrastructure needs.

• Offering the opportunity for strategic coordination which would help 
maximise the economic growth potential of a number of emerging 
major development schemes.

• Providing a more joined approach to raising and using infrastructure 
funding.

• Providing a multi-skilled resource to develop and deliver place-
based plans.

7.14 We consider that the DSPF has the potential to offer all of the above benefits. 
More specifically, the initiative may also help the Borough Council to 
demonstrate compliance with the duty to co-operate which will be a key test 
that any future High Peak Local Plan will be measured against at 
examination. The evidence commissioned to inform the DSPF is also likely to 
be of relevance to the High Peak Local Plan which may result in cost savings 
and efficiencies for the Borough Council. 

7.15 Nevertheless, there are potential risks associated with the DSPF. They 
include:

• The priorities and objectives of the DSPF may be interpreted as 
policies or proposals that should form part of a statutory plan and 
therefore subject to scrutiny at examination. This could lead to legal 
challenge. 

• The DSPF may conflict with local priorities and objectives which 
may lead to difficulties with any future Local Plan review

• The time required by Council officers to contribute to the DSPF may 
not be available given other corporate plan priorities 

7.16 Whilst the Borough Council should be mindful of the above, it is considered 
that participation in the project and close scrutiny of the DSPF as it emerges 
will help minimise risks. 

Next steps

7.17 In order to formalise working arrangements, Derbyshire County Council 
propose to agree Statements of Common Ground with all local planning 
authorities in the coming weeks. A draft copy of the Statement of Common 
Ground is not yet available. However, it is understood that it will seek to set 
out an agreed position of what the DSPF will incorporate, how it will be 
delivered and when.

7.18 A timetable for the project sets out the following key milestones:

• December 2019 - agree Statement of Common Ground

Page 12



• Late 2019 – early 2020 - commission additional evidence 

• March – August 2020 – prepare Issues, Objectives & Priorities 
document

• Late 2020 – approval of Issue, Objectives & Priorities document by 
D2 Joint Committee and local planning authorities.

• Early 2021 – public consultation

• 2021 – Q2 2022 – produce draft plan

• Q3 2022 - approval of draft plan by D2 Joint Committee and local 
planning authorities

• Q4 2022 – public consultation

7.19 The current timetable does not yet specify a timeframe for adoption but this is 
likely to be during 2023.

Proposal

7.20 It is proposed that the Economy and Growth Select Committee receives future 
reports to scrutinise the project as it develops.  

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Form - PUBLIC

NAME OF COUNCIL High Peak Borough Council

This assessment will be public and published on the council website. Please ensure that 
any group who has been consulted to provide the information within this form has been 
given sufficient feedback. Information within this assessment should provide the equality 
implications in any relevant report and be available for members prior to any decisions in 
relation to the content of this assessment.

SECTION 1: Initial Screening

Name of policy1 or function2 being assessed Policy / Function Status
Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework New

Responsible Service Area Date Form Completed
Regeneration 08/11/2019
Lead Officer for this Assessment Contact Number
Mark James Ext. 3643

Is there likely to be an impact on:
Yes No Possibly

the availability, eligibility, quality or cost 
of a service to individuals, households, 
communities or specific groups of 
people

X

the quality of life of individuals, 
households, communities or specific 
groups of people

X

the opportunities for individuals, 
households, communities or specific 
groups of people to improve their lives in 
some specific way

X

If yes/possibly to any of the above questions then please complete section 2.

If No to all the above questions, please provide a brief explanation of why no further 
consideration is required with regard to the Council’s equality duties.

1 Definition of policy = This can include policies, procedures, guidance, strategies and/or plans

2 Definition of function = Broad areas of activity, duties or powers – usually a service or set of services, including 
services which are provided internally

This report merely identifies that fact that a Strategic Planning Framework for Derbyshire is due to be prepared. At this point 
in time, there are no proposals to asses in terms of equalities impacts. However, it is proposed that future reports on the 
Framework are considered by the Council as details emerge. More detailed consideration of equalities is likely to be 
necessary at this time. 

Page 15



2

SECTION 2: 

2.1: Identifying the aims of the policy or function

Summarise: the main aims, objectives and/or purpose and scope of the policy, practice, 
service or function.

Who is/are the intended customer or beneficiary of this policy or function?

Page 16



3

2.2: Evidence of Impact

What evidence or data is being used to inform the Council’s understanding of the impact 
of the decision about this policy or function on equality target groups? (Please list and 
note where the evidence/data is held.)

Note: Evidence from consultation/engagement is particularly powerful. Please refer to the 
guidance available on the intranet.

Are there gaps/weaknesses in the available evidence/data which limit our understanding 
of the impact? 
Yes/No Detail:

If yes: How significant are these gaps? 
Not Significant – can proceed to 
decision

Justification:

Significant but can proceed to 
decision

Justification & action to be taken:

Significant and requires further 
investigation prior to a decision 
being made. 

Summarise the plan of action:

Page 17



4

2.3: Assessment of impact

Taking into account all the evidence available to you indicate where you think that the 
policy/function could have an intended or unintended negative impact on a particular group: i.e. it 
could cause some disadvantage. Potential discrimination may be direct - i.e. treating someone 
less favourably because of certain attributes of who they are or indirect i.e. when the proposed 
practice, policy or procedure may have the effect of disadvantaging people who share certain 
protected characteristics. Indicate where you think the policy/function could have an intended or 
unintended positive impact on any of the groups to promoting diversity and equality. Where the 
policy/function is not relevant to a particular group or has no potential impact indicate as neutral. 
Please give reasons for each outcome:

Protected Groups Negative 
Impact

Positive 
Impact

Neutral 
Impact

Explain impact & state what 
action can be taken (either to mitigate 

negative impacts or enhance positive impacts) .
People of a 
particular age such 
as children, young 
people, older people
People with 
disabilities 
including physical 
disabilities, sensory 
impairments, limiting 
long-term illnesses, 
learning disabilities 
or mental health 
difficulties
Racial / minority 
ethnic groups? 

Women or men 
including those living 
in particular 
communities
Pregnant women 
or people on 
maternity or 
paternity leave or 
breastfeeding 
mothers.  
A person’s marital 
status including 
civil partnership 
People with a 
particular sexual 
orientation
People with 
particular religion or 
belief
Trans people or 
people planning to 
or going through 
gender 
reassignment

Page 18



5

If there is potential for significant negative impacts on groups with protected characteristics which 
either cannot be mitigated or where there is uncertainty about the efficacy of measures, 
consideration should be given to consultation/engagement (or specific consultation and 
engagement) with those groups of people who may/will be impacted. Please refer to the separate 
guidance. If further consultation takes place then the Assessment of Impact above (2.3) should be 
revised taking into account any additional evidence.

Is further information or consultation required to complete this assessment? Yes/No
If an adverse negative impact has been identified that cannot be fully mitigated, can it be 
justified on grounds of promoting equality of opportunity for one group or for any other 
reason? i.e. is it a proportionate response to achieve a legitimate and justified aim.  
Please explain.

 Consider is the response proportionate/balanced
 Seek legal advice to cross check
 Refer to guidance to support your answer

Page 19



6

2.4 Conclusion

Signed (lead officer):  ___________________Mark James_______________________

Date:  08/11/2019

 

Page 20



Modern Gov – Consultation Implications Form 

Do any of the following apply to this issue/report? YES NO N/A
Consultation has already been completed. X

A new plan, service or policy X
Changing a current plan, service or policy.

The Council is 
considering

Implementation of a current plan, service or policy.
The Council needs evidence about the impact of 
changing external factors (demographic, economic, 
public policy) on community needs, perceptions and 
priorities.

X

The Council has sufficient evidence about 
community needs, perceptions and priorities on this 
issue/ policy/ plan/service. (including those of people 
with protected characteristics)

X
Evidence

There is an indication that the public or sections of 
the community are requesting changes to be made 
to Council plans, services or policies. (Complaints, 
petitions, Councillors ward information, MPs etc)

X

The Council has no or very little choice about 
implementation.

X

The Council has some/significant choice about 
implementation.

X

Are there external agencies who could be impacted 
significantly?

X

Changes 
proposed are 
prescribed by 
statute (the 
Council has a 
duty to 
implement 
change).

Are there internal stakeholders (services) who could 
be impacted?

X

There is a statutory duty to consult on this issue/plan/policy/service. X
And the type of consultation is prescribed.

to undertake consultation on this issue. XCouncil 
policy is: not to undertake consultation on this issue X
It has been determined that a full equality impact assessment is required. X

What is the scale and impact changes being considered could have?
(mark with an X) Little change                                                 Significant changes
Individuals/groups 
with protected 
characteristics
Few individuals

Most Households X

Is consultation required? If no please summarise the reason below:
Public consultation will be undertaken once the Derbyshire Strategic Planning 
Framework has been prepared. At this stage, the Council is merely being notified of the 
intent by Derbyshire County Council to prepare the plan.  

If yes please refer to the Council’s consultation toolkit available on the intranet.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Economy and Growth Select Committee

21 November 2019

TITLE: Progress Report on One Public Estate 
programmes and other grant aided 
programmes in Glossopdale

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Greenhalgh - Executive Councillor 
for Regeneration, Tourism and Leisure

CONTACT OFFICER: Joanna Bagnall, Sarah Porru – Head of 
Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED: Dinting; Gamesley; Hadfield North,; Hadfield 
South; Howard Town; Tintwistle

Appendix Attached – Map of A57 strategic corridor and Glossop Gateway 

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To provide a progress report on One Public Estate and other grant aided 
initiatives in Glossopdale.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee notes progress on the initiatives set out in the report and 
notes that further reports will be submitted when results of the studies are 
available. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The report provides an update on progress made with the delivery of three 
grant aided programmes of work impacting on Glossopdale this financial year.  
The programmes are:

 One Public Estate - place based delivery plan for Glossop and Gamesley.
 One Public Estate - High Peak depots review.
 Business Rates Retention programme – A57 Glossop Gateway masterplan 

and Local Impact Report for the trans-pennine upgrade programme.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



3.2 The report sets out detail of each of these programmes along with timescales 
and next steps.  The One Public Estate studies will explore the feasibility of, 
and opportunities for, co-location of public services such as depot operations, 
blue light services and health and social care facilities.  The aims of co-
location are to improve the delivery of services to residents; enable investment 
in existing buildings to reduce running costs and to release any surplus assets 
to deliver new homes.  The Business Rates Retention programme study will 
focus on predicted impacts that the proposed trans-pennine upgrade 
programme may have on Glossopdale and will provide the Council with a 
Masterplan for the A57 and Gateway to Glossop to help frame a response.

3.3 The report considers the cumulative impact of proposals likely to arise from 
the three programmes of work, alongside the planned growth on the A57 
corridor as set out in the Local Plan and the link roads roads forming part of 
the trans-pennine upgrade scheme.  It is noted that development activities 
taken together are expected to make the A57 and Gateway to Glossop a 
highly strategic economic corridor for the Borough and discusses the role of 
the commissioned Glossop Gateway Masterplan in guiding development in 
order to maximise available benefits.

3.4 Links to relevant wider initiatives are also described, including the Council’s 
work on the declaration of air quality management areas and cross boundary 
issues with Greater Manchester, specifically the proposed Greater Manchester 
Clean Air Plan, proposals on public transport in the Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework (January 2019) and the Transport for Greater Manchester 
consultation on a proposed bus franchising scheme: Doing Buses Differently.

3.5 The report details how the Masterplan report will be used to illustrate 
measures to address the impacts of any increase in traffic through Glossop 
and Hadfield town centres from new road infrastructure.  This is expected to 
include proposals on making it easier for people to complete local journeys by 
walking, cycling or use of public transport and the delivery of improvements to 
Green Infrastructure.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The projects described have the potential to help deliver all four aims of the 
Corporate Plan:

 Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High 
Peak.

 A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward-thinking council.
 Protect and create jobs by supporting economic growth, development and 

regeneration.
 Protect and improve the environment including responding to the climate 

emergency.

Page 24



5. Alternative Options

5.1 This report provides a progress update to note.  Options emerging from the 
programmes of work described may be the subject of future reports.

Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

**INSERT NAME OF ANY PAPERS AND WEB LINKS” Joanna Bagnall, Sarah Porru
Head of Regeneration
joanna.bagnall@highpeak.gov.uk, 
sarah.porru@highpeak.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 The Council has received funding to support three major programmes of work 
relating to Glossopdale, (although one is Borough-wide) with work on all three 
projects being undertaken this financial year, and extending into 2020/21.  The 
three projects are complementary and represent a significant investment in 
opportunities for Glossop town centre and the wider sub-area.

6.2 The three programmes are as follows:

 One Public Estate (OPE) programme (Glossop and Gamesley): A 
feasibility study to explore co-location opportunities across the public 
sector in Glossop and Gamesley, including the Police, Fire and Ambulance 
services; NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG); and County Council social care and health services.

 One Public Estate programme (High Peak depot review): A feasibility study 
to explore opportunities for co-location and integration of the Borough and 
County Councils’ depot sites and services in High Peak, including services 
currently managed out of Glossop depots at Surrey Street, Pike’s Lane and 
Melandra Road.

 Business Rates Retention programme (Glossop Gateway Masterplan): An 
assessment of the likely effects of the Trans-Pennine roads scheme 
upgrade proposals on Glossopdale, and in particular on the A57 economic 
corridor and Glossop and Hadfield town centres, in order to help frame the 
Council’s response to both the growth opportunities presented by delivery 
of new local road infrastructure, and any local quality of life, health and 
well-being and environmental issues that increased traffic may give rise to.

6.3 Further detail of each of these grant funded programmes is provided below, 
along with an update of project progress, timescales and next steps.

Page 25



OPE Glossop and Gamesley

6.4 The government launched the OPE (One Public Estate) programme as a pilot 
in 2013.  The programme is run jointly by the Cabinet Office and LGA (Local 
Government Association).  It aims to bring together all public sector bodies 
within a locality.  The partnership of bodies is able to pool data on their 
combined assets; develop plans to co-locate and integrate service delivery 
where this can bring benefits; and to release any resulting surplus land and 
buildings for other uses.

6.5 High Peak Borough Council has been awarded a grant offer of £100,000 from 
the OPE Programme to support a project within Glossop and Gamesley.  The 
overall aim of the project is for public sector partners to work together to 
commission a feasibility study and business case to support the following 
objectives:

1. A more “fit for purpose” public estate.
2. Benefits of improved service delivery through co-location and integration.
3. Easier access to a range of public services by consolidation into a town 

centre location.
4. Improved community facilities and customer experience of public services 

through creation of a single point “hub”.
5. Financial savings through capital receipts from the sale of surplus assets 

and reduced property running costs.
6. Release of land for new homes.

6.6 Partner organisations who have agreed in principle to work in partnership to 
achieve the above objectives are listed below.  Whilst no agreements have yet 
been signed, the following organisations have committed to forming a Project 
Control Board as a first step:

 High Peak Borough Council
 Derbyshire County Council
 NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group
 Derbyshire Police and Fire Services
 North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust

6.7 The first meeting of the Project Control Board will be on Monday 25th 
November 2019.  At this meeting, Board Members will be asked to consider 
three main issues:

1. The draft Memorandum of Understanding between partners, including a list 
of assets to be included within the scope of works.

2. The terms of the grant agreement proposed between OPE North Midlands 
Partnership (acting by Derbyshire County Council) and High Peak Borough 
Council, including terms of the re-payable element of grant funding and a 
proposed grant repayment plan.

3. Draft consultants brief.

6.8 Each of these is considered in more detail below.

Page 26



MoU

6.9 A draft Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) relating to the OPE programme 
(Glossop and Gamesley) has been drawn up to govern the principles of 
collaboration and to set out the parties’ commitments.  One of the key 
elements of the MoU will be to record agreement on the property and land 
within Glossop and Gamesley that is to be included in the project.

6.10 Assets for inclusion within the scope of the OPE programme are currently 
being considered by each partner organisation.

Grant agreement

6.11 The total sum payable to High Peak Borough Council under the proposed 
grant agreement is £100,000.  Further funds may be available subject to 
evidence that additional funding would accelerate and support delivery.

6.12 The grant is to be split into parts: standard grant funding of £20,000 (non-
repayable) and sustainable (“recyclable”) grant funding of £80,000 which is to 
be returned to the national OPE programme for re-investment in new OPE 
projects.  It is intended that the sustainable element of grant funding will be 
paid back from the financial benefits realised.

6.13 Under the terms of the proposed grant agreement, the repayable grant is due 
to be paid back by North Midlands OPE programme to Cabinet Office by no 
later than the 30th April 2022.  A repayment plan will need to be agreed 
between all partners in the project in order to ensure that the liability for grant 
repayment does not fall to the Borough Council alone.  

6.14 It is proposed that all five Parties to the MoU (including the Borough Council) 
agree to return £8,000 each in both April 2021 and April 2022.  This means 
that all Parties make a fixed contribution of £16,000 over two years in lieu of 
their expected long term financial gain from sale of assets or reduced property 
running costs.  This approach has the benefit of certainty to all Parties at the 
outset - with respect to their total financial liabilities and when the monies 
would be payable.

Consultants brief

6.15 Subject to agreement by all Parties, consultants will be commissioned to 
manage the OPE programme in Glossop and Gamesley on behalf of the 
partners.  The work is expected to include the preparation of a feasibility study 
followed by identification of a viable programme of development schemes 
supported by a detailed business case.  

6.16 Subject to agreement of all partners, the feasibility study will include the 
following scope of works:

 Engagement with parties to understand the requirements of each partner.
 Review of sites to inform which assets might be shared / released, 

including identification of associated costs and savings to each partner.

Page 27



 Proposal of options for delivery of a public sector hub in Glossop town 
centre for co-location of health, social care and other community services.

 Proposal of options for delivery of a “blue light” hub in Glossop town centre 
for co-location of fire, police and ambulance services.

 Proposal of options for the regeneration of Glossop Town Hall, Market Hall 
and Municipal Buildings.

 Proposal of options for the co-location of Glossop leisure facilities.
 Consideration of the Borough Council’s wider housing delivery strategy in 

Glossopdale and identification of opportunities to contribute to the strategy.
 Preparation of a disposal strategy for surplus sites.
 Preparation of masterplans for key sites, in line with the requirements of 

the High Peak Local Plan.
 Public consultation and market engagement.

6.17 The draft options will be subject to a viability assessment and consultants will 
be expected to recommend a preferred option, accompanied by a full financial 
appraisal.  A delivery strategy for the scheme(s), including potential sources of 
public and private sector investment will also be required.

Next steps

6.18 The project is expected to be undertaken over a period of eighteen months, 
with the study report to be expected in summer 2021.  Subsequent delivery of 
the recommended programme of schemes will naturally take place over a 
longer time-frame.  

6.19 Project partners will come together for the first meeting of the Project Control 
Board on Monday 25th November.  Subject to agreement of the MoU, including 
inclusion of sites and the sustainable grant repayment plan, the first step will 
be to appoint suitably qualified and experienced consultants.

6.20 A further report will be brought to a future meeting of the Committee to provide 
an update on project progress.

OPE Depot review

6.21 The Borough Council has been awarded grant funding of £30,000 under the 
OPE programme in order to review depot functions across the borough.  
Working in partnership with Derbyshire County Council, consultants BNP 
Paribas have been appointed to consider opportunities for co-location and 
integration of the two authorities’ depot sites and services in High Peak, 
including highways, street cleaning, vehicle maintenance, grounds 
maintenance and waste management and storage.

6.22 BNP Paribas was appointed in June 2019.  The consultants have been asked 
to make recommendations on opportunities to:

 Re-configure depot sites to increase the efficiency of space utilisation.
 Combine uses or services on depot sites to improve efficiency through 

economies of scale, for example through shared mess or storage facilities.

Page 28



 Enable release of surplus sites for regeneration.
 Enable financial benefits through generating capital receipts and/or 

reduced running costs.

6.23 In September BNP Paribas shared some initial draft options for the 
consolidation and rationalisation of the borough’s nineteen depot sites.  The 
initial project findings, with particular regard to Glossopdale, are considered 
below.

6.24 There are three small depot sites in Glossopdale: at Glossop Cemetery, 
Howard Park and Manor Park.  The depots are used mainly for storage and 
staff welfare.  It is proposed that these “minor” sites, together with other minor 
sites at Whaley Bridge and Buxton, are retained and the existing operational 
use is maintained.

6.25 For the remaining depot estate, three core options were agreed for further 
consideration: 

A. Delivery of short-term opportunities for operational consolidation with 
release of surplus land for development.

B. Proposals for long-term co-location of all Borough and County Council 
depot services onto a single site (“super-depot” option).

C. Proposals for long-term co-location of Borough and County Council 
depot services onto a principal site; whilst retaining a key base for joint 
operational services at a satellite location elsewhere in the borough 
(“dual site” option).

6.26 Option A presents two opportunities for Glossop that may be realised in the 
short term.  Derbyshire County Council has a depot for their landscape team 
at Pike’s Lane that may offer an opportunity for a small scale residential 
development.  In addition part of the Borough Council’s waste team operate 
from the Surrey Street depot where there is also parking for some of the 
refuse fleet, “wash-off” facilities for vehicles and diesel storage.  This site may 
also offer an opportunity for a small residential scheme.  BNP Paribas is 
examining options for re-providing the existing landscape and waste service 
operations from these two sites at other suitable depot locations.  

6.27 A further opportunity is available in Buxton from relocation of the bin store at 
Market Street to enable release of this Council owned housing allocation in the 
Local Plan.

6.28 Option B is a long term option to identify a site in the borough for a “super 
depot”, co-locating Borough and County Council services on a single site.  
Possible suitable locations for this are either at land off Waterswallows Road 
in Buxton, adjacent to the existing Waterswallows depot and household waste 
recycling centre; or at land off Graphite Way, Rossington Park, Hadfield.  
Should a future super depot be delivered in Buxton, facilities for the public to 
bring household waste for tipping or recycling should be retained in Glossop, 
with potential improvements made to the existing household waste recycling 
centre at Melandra Road.

Page 29



6.29 Option C considers the issues around moving to dual site operation in the long 
term.  This option explores bringing both Councils’ services together at a 
principal site (most likely at land off Waterswallows Road), whilst investing at 
the household waste recycling centre at Melandra Road to form a satellite site 
in Glossop.

Next steps

6.30 A draft depot sites strategy was received in the first week of November and is 
being reviewed by project partners.  A verbal update can be provided at the 
meeting.

6.31 The next steps will be to test the viability and deliverability of options through 
the business case process.  Financial modelling with funding and delivery 
options will be presented by the consultants.  A final report and business case 
for the Council to consider is expected at the end of the year.

Business Rates Retention Programme: Masterplan for the Glossop Gateway

6.32 Derbyshire County Council has agreed to set aside approximately £8.6m (30% 
of the total business rate pool) to support a programme of grant schemes 
enabling economic growth across the County.  The schemes seek to support 
projects on an “invest to generate” basis, with targeted investment aimed at 
securing an increase in future business rates received.

6.33 Under this Business Rate Retention Programme, Derbyshire County Council 
has offered the Borough Council a grant of £40,000 to support a study 
focussing on the A57 gateway to Glossop in the light of potential implications  
for Glossopdale from Highways England proposed  trans-pennine upgrade 
programme.

6.34 The trans-pennine upgrade programme aims to reduce journey times between 
Manchester and Sheffield,  improving connectivity between the two cities.  The 
programme includes proposals for two new roads to the north of Glossop: the 
Mottram Moor and the A57(T) to A57 link roads. 

 
6.35 Highways England is required to make an application for a Development 

Consent Order in order to obtain planning permission to construct the roads.  
This application will be made to the Planning Inspectorate who will examine 
the application in public hearings and then make a recommendation to the 
Secretary of State for Transport, who will decide whether or not the project will 
go ahead.  As part of the examination process, relevant local authorities will be 
invited to submit Local Impact Reports.  The purpose of these reports is to 
enable a local authority to give details of the likely impact of the proposed 
development on the authority’s area.

6.36 The Borough Council has invited tenders from consultants to prepare a Local 
Impact Report for the new road schemes on the Council’s behalf.  Evidence to 
date suggests that delivery of the link roads will have both positive and 
negative impacts on aspects of Glossopdale, including on journey times 
through Glossop town centre, journey times to the M67 motorway, quality of 

Page 30



life for residents living along the A57, and economic development along the 
A57 strategic economic corridor.

6.37 As a consequence, in addition to the preparation of the Local Impact Report, 
the consultants have been asked to prepare a Masterplan for the A57 corridor 
and Gateway to Glossop in order to help support the Council’s response to the 
Impact Report’s findings.  The aim of the Masterplan will be to ensure that the 
Council is positioned to respond rapidly and effectively to new growth 
opportunities - as well as to any local quality of life, health and well-being and 
environmental issues – that arise from additional traffic using the new roads.

6.38 The Masterplan will be used to help identify opportunities for landscape / 
townscape improvements that enhance the appearance of the Glossop 
Gateway.  This will include identifying a role for specific “opportunity sites” 
such as the former Spread Eagle Pub (later known as the Riverside Inn) at 
Woolley Bridge.  The Masterplan will also consider how Green Infrastructure 
can be used to help deliver additional connectivity and form part of Air Quality 
Management Area Action Plans to improve air quality in the area.

6.39 Overall, an implementation plan for the Masterplan will need to demonstrate 
how its proposals can help to promote an increase in business rate receipts. 
The Master Plan is expected to help the Council support and promote 
opportunities to encourage business growth and inward investment, via 
enhancing the role of the A57 as a strategic economic corridor.

 
Next steps

6.40 The commission was advertised between 1st October and 30th October 2019.  
A verbal update can be provided at the meeting.

6.41 Highways England has slippage in the timetable for submission of the 
Development Consent Order to the Planning Inspectorate – this is now 
expected in Summer 2020, but is still subject to change.  On current timetable 
expectations, Highways England’s Environmental Statement with traffic 
modelling, air quality and noise monitoring data is expected in November 2019 
and the Local Impact Report would need to be submitted around Autumn 
2020.  Work on the Masterplan will commence in advance of this.

Relationship between projects and other relevant initiatives

6.42 The A57 corridor is expected to be a key location for development and change 
in Glossopdale in the short and medium term.

6.43 The Local Plan identifies the corridor as a focus for delivery of both new 
homes and employment growth.  Housing site allocations are identified at 
Dinting Road (G19), Dinting Lane (G20), the former railway museum (G23) 
and Adderley Place (G32).  These sites together could see the delivery of 
around 330 new homes over the next ten to fifteen years.  In addition, the One 
Public Estate work is expected to release a number of sites for small 
residential developments across Glossop town centre and the wider A57 
corridor.

Page 31



6.44 The delivery of new homes should be supported by growth in employment 
opportunities, with a Local Plan employment site allocation of 2.5 hectares at 
land off Wren Nest Road expected to deliver new employment space.  The 
A57 is also the location of Glossopdale’s current principal employment 
corridor, supporting a cluster of Primary Employment Zones along its length 
including: Surrey Street, Logwood Mill, Dinting Lane Industrial Estate, Dinting 
Lodge, Dinting Vale Industrial Estate, Brookfield Industrial Estate, Woolley 
Bridge Road, Waterside and Etherow Industrial Park (Graphite Way).  The 
proposed trans-pennine upgrade programme should deliver improved 
connectivity for businesses along the A57 corridor, enabling reduced journey 
times to the M67 motorway.

6.45 The Local Impact Report being prepared as the Council’s submission to the 
examination of the trans-pennine upgrade proposals is required to identify the 
likely impacts of delivery of the road schemes on local environmental quality, 
quality of life issues and socio-economic and community matters.  Whilst many 
benefits to the Borough are expected from both the proposed new road 
schemes and planned growth, additional traffic through Glossop town centre 
and associated potential impacts on air quality are also likely.  

6.46 The Council has declared an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) on the 
A628 Woodhead Road in Tintwistle and is considering a second AQMA for 
Glossop town centre.  Following the declaration of an AQMA, a local authority 
is required to develop an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) setting out the 
measures to be put in place in order to improve local air quality.  The Council’s 
AQAP will include measures making it easier for people to make short 
journeys by walking, cycling or public transport.

6.47 The AQAP is expected to consider opportunities for supporting a joined up 
strategy with Greater Manchester.  The proposed Greater Manchester Clean 
Air Plan seeks to tackle nitrogen dioxide exceedances at the roadside and will 
be proposing to adopt many of the same measures as set out in the Council’s 
Action Plan.

6.48 Further cross boundary issues of relevance are highlighted in the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework (January 2019).  This includes consideration 
of the role of the proposed Mottram Moor and A57(T) to A57 Link Roads 
scheme in growth across Greater Manchester and sets out a range of 
transport link improvements, including a potential new train station at 
Gamesley.

6.49 In a related measure, Transport for Greater Manchester has a consultation 
running between 14th October 2019 and 8th January 2020 on a proposed bus 
franchising scheme: Doing Buses Differently.  The scheme proposes to 
resolve some of the issues relating to falling bus use and the current system 
whereby individual bus companies decide their own routes.  A proposed new 
franchising scheme for the whole of Greater Manchester would mean that bus 
services would be under Greater Manchester’s control and the authority would 
decide which services would be provided.  GMCA would set the routes, 
timetables, tickets and standards, while the bus operators would run the 

Page 32



services.  This is expected to allow buses to work better with the rest of the 
public transport network.

Role of the Masterplan

6.50 Links to Greater Manchester, alongside existing and planned development, 
make the A57 and Gateway to Glossop a highly strategic economic corridor 
for the Borough.

6.51 It is proposed that the commissioned masterplan for the Glossop A57 corridor 
and Gateway will assist in drawing together the outputs from the range of 
studies, initiatives and growth opportunities set out above, providing spatial 
representation of proposals and helping to reinforce anticipated positive 
impacts whilst offering mitigation measures for potential negative effects.  The 
masterplan will help the Council to:

 support business growth and inward investment along the A57 corridor, 
enhancing the role of the A57 as a strategic economic corridor.

 respond to local quality of life, health and well-being and environmental 
issues arising from the trans-pennine upgrade programme.

 support local environmental improvements at the Gateway to Glossop 
including offering a role for key sites such as the Riverside Inn at Woolley 
Bridge.

 guide balanced and sustainable development along the A57 corridor, 
including by ensuring that new development is framed by high quality 
green and active travel infrastructure.

 undertake joint working with neighbouring authorities on cross boundary 
issues including provision of Green Infrastructure, public transport and air 
quality management.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Graphite Way

Waterside PEZ
Roughfields
Padfield
Main Road

G3

Etherow 
Ind Park

M67

Woolley Bridge
Road PEZ

Brookfield 
Ind Estate

Dinting
Lodge PEZ

Dinting
Vale PEZ

Riverside Inn

      New
Roundabout

Proposed new link
    road to M67

Melandra Rd

Glossop
Caravans 
PEZ

Adderley
  Place G32

Logwood
Mill PEZ

G23

G20

Dinting Lane
Ind Est PEZ Wren Nest Rd

   Allocation

Pikes Lane
   Depot

Philip Howard 
     School

Surrey St 
    PEZ

Surrey Street
     Depot

Glossopdale
Community
College

 A57
Snake
Pass

Woodhead

St Lukes Sch

A628
Wood

head Road

GLOSSOP GATEWAY

Tesco

KEY
AQMA
Employment
Housing
Depot
OPE

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100018411.
Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



15 November 2019

ECONOMY AND GROWTH 
Chairman: Councillor Siddall

Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby
Lead Officer: Dai Larner

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Progress report on One Public Estate programmes J Bagnall/M James
Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework D Larner
Rail Reinstatement Campaign – The Peaks and Dales Rail 
Link

S Chaytow Presentation

Work Programme

21-Nov-19

Affordable housing options
Community Infrastructure Levy report M James
Report back from public transport working group
Housing Infrastructure Fund and Accelerated Housing 
Delivery Programme Update

J Brooks

Work Programme

6-Feb-20

Tourist information 
Crescent
Arts strategy
Future High Street Fund: Heritage Action Zone H Pakpahan
Work Programme

26-Mar-20

Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
Work Programme

June-20

July-20 Work Programme

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 9



15 November 2019

ECONOMY AND GROWTH 

Work ProgrammeSept-20

Transpennine Upgrade
High Peak Local Plan Review  

Visit Peak District
Chairman of Crescent Trust
Lidl Glossop
Old Nestle Buxton Site
Shop Units in High Peak and vacancy rates
Council website – tourism (hotels, events and social 
media)

To add in

Industrial Units – capacity, vacancy rates, brownfield sites

P
age 38



Document is Restricted

Page 39

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework
	Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework enc. 1
	Derbyshire Strategic Planning Framework enc. 2

	7 Progress Report on One Public Estate programmes
	Appendix A 1 for Progress Report on One Public Estate programmes

	9 Select Committee Work Programme
	11 Exempt minutes of the previous meeting

